

# Social Workers

## Administrative By-laws 2023





## Table of Contents

<b>TITLE .....</b>	<b>3</b>
<b>OFFICERS OF THE COLLEGE .....</b>	<b>3</b>
<b>TERMS OF OFFICE .....</b>	<b>6</b>
<b>REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES .....</b>	<b>6</b>
<b>DUTIES .....</b>	<b>6</b>
<b>PROCEDURES .....</b>	<b>7</b>
<b>MEETINGS OF THE COLLEGE .....</b>	<b>7</b>
<b>FINANCES .....</b>	<b>8</b>
<b>AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS .....</b>	<b>9</b>
<b>COMMITTEES .....</b>	<b>9</b>
<b>REGISTRATION AND MEMBERSHIP .....</b>	<b>10</b>
<b>PERSONAL AND REAL PROPERTY .....</b>	<b>14</b>
<b>PAYMENT OF FEES .....</b>	<b>14</b>
<b>STUDENT MEMBERS AND ASSOCIATE MEMBERS (RETIRED) .....</b>	<b>15</b>
<b>RECOMMENDED RATES .....</b>	<b>17</b>
<b>SCHEDULE "A" ANNUAL AND OTHER FEES .....</b>	<b>18</b>

*These By-laws are made  
by the College  
pursuant to subsection 11(1)  
of the Social Workers Act.*

## Title

1. These by-laws may be cited as the Social Workers Administrative By-laws 2016.

## Officers of the College

### *Executive Committee*

2. (1) The officers of the College are the Past President, the President, the Vice-President, the Secretary, and the Treasurer.  
(2) The officers shall perform the duties set out in these by-laws as well as those that are designated by the Council.  
(3) The officers of the College shall constitute the Executive Committee.  
(4) The President shall be Chair of the Executive Committee.  
(5) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall be ex officio non-voting member of the Executive Committee.  
(6) The duties of the Executive Committee are:
  - (a) to meet as required, to deal with Council matters between regular meetings of the Council;
  - (b) to make decisions on urgent matters that cannot wait for a Council meeting;
  - (c) to keep minutes of the meetings and make them available to Council members;
  - (d) to make recommendations to Council on specific College policies;
  - (e) to consider amendments to by-laws and regulations and make recommendations to Council for amendments as required;
  - (f) to approve persons selected for the awards;
- (7) A quorum for a meeting of the Executive Committee shall be three members.

### *President*

3. (1) The President shall ensure the Council and the College conducts its affairs in accordance with the Social Workers Act, the Regulations and by-laws.  
(2) The President shall preside at all meetings of the College and the Council.  
(3) The President is an ex-officio, voting member of all committees of the College, however established.

### *Past President*

4. The Past President shall:
  - (1) be available for consultation to the Executive Committee and the Council.
  - (2) co-ordinate the process for the selection of the recipients of awards to members of the College.

### *Vice-President*

5. (1) The Vice-President shall assume the duties of the President in the absence or inability of the President to act for any reason.
  - (2) In the case of the resignation, death or dismissal of the President, Vice-president or any elected member of the Council, the remaining members of the Council may fill, from among the members of the College, the vacancy so caused for the unexpired portion of the term.
  - (3) The Vice-President shall periodically review the by-laws of the College and make a report to the Council and the College of the result of that review.

### *Secretary*

6. (1) The Secretary shall ensure
  - (a) review of the minutes of all Council meetings and meetings of the College;
  - (b) that all approved minutes are posted to the website;
  - (c) Liaison with Executive Director/ Registrar for the preparation and distribution of copies of the minutes as may be required; and
- (2) The Secretary shall ensure certified copies of all by-laws and amendments to by-laws are filed as required under the Regulations Act.

### *Treasurer*

7. The Treasurer shall ensure:
  - (a) maintenance of the books in a manner approved by the Council;
  - (d) payment of expenses as approved by the Council;
  - (e) depositing of the funds of the College in a financial institution approved by the Council;
  - (f) preparation and presentation of the budget to the Council and the general membership at the AGM;
  - (g) submission of monthly financial reports to the Council and an annual financial statement to the College; and
  - (h) recommendation of the appointment of an accounting firm.

### *Term of Office*

8. (1) The President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer shall be elected to office for a two-year term.  
(2) Officers are eligible for re-election, but no President shall be eligible for election in the same office for more than two consecutive two-year terms.

### *Council of the College*

9. (1) For the purposes of clause 12(1)(a) of the Social Workers Act, the Council of the College consists of the officers of the College, chair of the Board of Examiners or designated Board member, and 8 regional members elected through an online vote and proclaimed at the Annual General Meeting.  
(2) In addition to the membership of the Council of the College set out at (1), the Council of the College shall appoint the following members, each of which is a voting member of Council:
  - (a) 1 representative from the Nova Scotia Association of Black Social Workers,
  - (b) 1 Indigenous social worker,
  - (c) 1 faculty representative from the Dalhousie University School of Social Work,
  - (d) 1 student representative from the Dalhousie University School of Social Work,
  - (e) 1 faculty representative from the Université Sainte-Anne social service program,
  - (f) 1 student representative from the Université Sainte-Anne social service program,
  - (g) 1 faculty representative from the Cape Breton University social work program, and
  - (h) 1 student representative from the Cape Breton University social work program.
- (3) If a position is not filled by a vote of the membership, the position is deemed vacant and does not count against the quorum.
- (4) Council can appoint people from the regions to fill vacant positions
- (5) The quorum shall be a simple majority (50% + 1) of filled Council membership positions excluding non-voting members.
- (6) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall be an ex officio non-voting member of the Council.

## Terms of Office

10. (1) Members of Council take office immediately following the Annual General Meeting where they are proclaimed.
  - (a) No member of Council or Executive shall fill a position for more than 3 2-year terms.
  - (b) If the term of a member of Council or Executive expires and a new representative has not been nominated to fill that position, the former member of Council or Executive can stay in the position until such a replacement is secured.
- (2) The 8 regional members and executive of Council can be elected through an online vote and proclaimed at the Annual General Meeting.
- (3) The Canadian Association of Social Workers representative shall be the Vice-President of the College

## Remuneration and expenses

11. Members of the Council do not receive remuneration for their services but are entitled to reimbursement for expenses actually incurred on Council business and which are approved by Council.

## Duties

12. The duties of the Council are:
  - (a) to ensure the sound administration of the affairs of the College;
  - (b) to ensure putting into effect the decisions and directions of the general membership consistent with the Act;
  - (c) to serve as the governing body of the College;
  - (d) to exercise any other functions entrusted to it by the Act;
  - (e) to appoint delegates and experts to act on behalf of the College when necessary;
  - (f) to set up committees or commissions as may be deemed necessary to conduct the business of the College;
  - (g) to engage and dismiss the Executive Director/ Registrar and to determine their salary, duties, and working conditions;
  - (h) to ensure the profession's ethical responsibilities for social change are addressed;
  - (i) to ensure the establishment and maintenance of sound personnel practices for employees of the College;

- (j) to ensure the preparation and approval of the budget for final approval at the Annual General Meeting; and
- (k) to make such other decisions as may be necessary to further the activities of the College.

## Procedures

13. (1) The Council shall meet to conduct the business of the College, not less than four times a year.
- (2) The Secretary shall ensure notice of Council meetings to Council members at least six days in advance of the meeting, stating place and time.
- (3) At any meeting of the Council, all matters shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the members of the Council present at the meeting and chair shall vote only when the votes are equally divided.
- (4) Council shall determine which recognized rules of order govern meetings of Council and meetings of the College.
- (5) The minutes of the Council meetings shall be sent to all members of the Council prior to the next meeting.
- (6) If a member of the Council does not attend three consecutive meetings, without sufficient cause accepted by the Council, a vacancy shall be declared.

## Meetings of the College

### *Annual General Meeting*

14. The College shall hold its Annual General Meeting prior to May 31st in each year.

### *Special meeting*

15. (1) A special meeting of the College may be called by the President at any time considered by the President to be appropriate.
- (2) The President shall call a special meeting of the College upon request to the Secretary made by at least 50 members of the College.

### *Notice of meeting*

16. (1) The Secretary shall ensure a notice of all College meetings together with a draft agenda is sent to each member of the College by post or electronically at least 14 days prior to the date of the meeting.
- (2) Any notice mailed to the last known address of a member of the College is deemed to be notice to that member of a meeting.
- (3) No member or group may present a resolution requiring an expenditure of funds necessitating a change in annual membership fees unless written notice of the proposed

resolution has been submitted to the Council at least six weeks before the annual general meeting or special meeting. The Council shall provide notice of the proposed resolution to the Secretary for circulation to the membership at least three weeks prior to the meeting of the College at which the resolution is to be submitted to the membership for a vote.

### *Quorum*

17. Twenty members who are present at a meeting of the College constitutes a quorum.

### *Voting*

18. (1) All matters at a meeting of the College are decided by a majority of the votes of the members present at the meeting.

(2) The President or other person chairing the meeting shall only vote if the vote on a question is evenly divided.

(3) Members shall vote by a show of hands unless a majority decides that a vote should be taken by secret ballot.

(4) The council may establish rules to allow for amendment to these Bylaws and the passing of resolution by members through electronic means, including by internet voting of members entitled to vote. These rules must provide for reasonable access to voting, the confidentiality and security of such voting process and to ensure that the provisions for notice, majority approval and the voting period.

### *Procedure*

19. Recognized rules of order, as determined by Council, shall govern every meeting of the College.

## Finances

### *Cheques required*

20. All financial transactions of the College must be supported by bills or receipts.

### *Signing officers*

21. The President, Treasurer, Executive Director/ Registrar, and one other person designated by the Council are the signing officers of the College.

### *Fiscal year*

22. The fiscal year of the College is the calendar year.

### *Year-end financial statement*

23. The Treasurer shall file a copy of the annual financial review report with the President within fifteen days of the Treasurer receiving it.



## Amendment of By-Laws

### *Procedure*

24. (1) The Council may propose amendments to any of the by-laws of the College by providing notice of the proposed amendments to the Secretary for circulation to the membership at least three weeks prior to the meeting of the College at which the proposed by-laws are to be submitted to the membership for a vote.
- (2) Any member may propose amendments to any of the by-laws of the College, with the exception of changes to the annual membership fees or other fees set out in Schedule "A", by providing a notice of the proposed amendments to the Secretary for circulation to the membership in accordance with subsection (1).
- (3) Any resolution requiring an expenditure of funds necessitating a change in annual membership fees or other fees set out in Schedule "A" is deemed to be a proposal to amend the annual membership fees or other fees set out in Schedule "A" of the by-laws.
- (4) Notice of a change in annual membership fees or other fees set out in Schedule "A" or notice of any resolution requiring an expenditure of funds necessitating a change in annual membership fees shall be effective notice of an amendment to the fees set out in Schedule "A" regardless of the amount by which the fees set out in Schedule "A" are either increased or decreased by the passage of that resolution or amended resolution at a meeting of the College.
- (5) Any proposed changes in the by-laws shall be subject to the approval of two thirds of the members voting on the proposed amendment.
- (6) Any proposed changes in the by-laws shall be effective from the date of the vote or any effective date identified in the proposed by-law.

## Committees

### *General rules*

25. Council may establish any committees, task groups, or working groups it needs in order to complete its work, and shall determine the composition, terms of reference and manner of appointment of chairs.
- (1) Each committee shall:
- (a) perform its duties subject to the direction of the Council;
  - (b) meet as frequently as is required to fulfill its terms of reference; and
  - (c) report to the Council on the business of the committee.

### *Nomination committee*

26. (1) The Nomination Committee consists of a chair and at least two other persons appointed by Council.

(2) The Nomination Committee shall solicit nominations of persons to fill any vacancies in any of the offices or positions of the College.

(3) The Nomination Committee shall submit a report to Council in January of that year containing nominations for offices and for those offices or positions on the Council for which elections are required.

(4) The Nomination Committee shall receive from any member, a nomination or nominations for any officer or position on the Council provided the person nominated agrees in writing to the nomination, and the nomination is supported by the signed approval of at least three members in good standing of the College.

(5) All nominees must have consented to act if nominated and elected.

(6) If more than one nomination is proposed to one or more positions of the College including the Officers or members of Council, an election shall be held in accordance with the voting procedures for meetings of the College as set out in these by-laws.

## Registration and Membership

### *Duties of Executive Director/ Registrar*

27. (1) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall receive all applications for membership and registration and verify they meet with the requirements of the Social Workers Act and the by-laws of the College.

(2) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall process and present all applications for registration as Registered Social Workers, Social Worker Candidates, and Registered Social Workers (Provisional) to the Board of Examiners for review and a decision.

(3) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall issue, on the direction of the Board of Examiners, certificates of registration and renewals to Registered Social Workers and Social Worker Candidates and Registered Social Workers (Provisional).

(4) The Executive Director/ Registrar of the Board of Examiners shall keep the Register up to date and secure within the office of the Board of Examiners.

(5) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall, for the purposes of determining appropriate registration categories, determine whether a position constitutes the practice of social work.

(6) When an applicant is seeking a temporary registration while offering their social work services to Nova Scotians during the time of a public emergency, the Executive Director/ Registrar may issue a temporary registration in keeping with the Regulations.

(7) When an applicant is applying for a temporary registration, the Executive Director/ Registrar may, after processing the necessary documentation, issue a temporary registration in keeping with the Regulations.

(8) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall remove from the registry any member from the Register of Registered Social Workers, Social Worker Candidates and Registered

Social Workers (Provisional) for non-payment of registration fees after Dec 31st of the year the fees are due.

### *Register of social workers*

28. (1) The Board of Examiners shall establish and maintain a Register of Registered Social Workers which shall be composed of Registered Social Workers, Provisional Registered Social Workers, temporary Registered Social Workers, and Social Worker Candidates.

(2) The College shall maintain a publicly accessible Register of Social Workers, which shall include the social worker's:

- (a) Last name;
- (b) Used name
- (c) Registration number;
- (d) Registration category;
- (e) Registration status;
- (f) Initial registration date;
- (g) Registration restrictions, limits, and/or conditions, if any;
- (h) Registrations sanctions;
- (i) Private practice specializations, if any; and
- (j) With consent, practice location and contact information.

(3) The last name and used name of student, associate, and honorary members shall also be listed in the publicly accessible Register of Social Workers.

### *Additional categories of membership*

29. (1) Student membership in the College may be granted to students who are registered at an approved educational institution providing social work education, upon approval by the Executive Director/Registrar.

(2) Associate registration shall be available to Registered Social Workers, Social Worker Candidates and Provisional Registered Social Workers upon application to the Executive Director/Registrar if the applicant is unemployed, on pregnancy parental leave, or on long term disability. For the purposes of this sub-section, unemployed means not working for any employer and not self-employed. Pregnancy and parental leave means leave as outlined in the Labour Standards Code.

(3) Honorary membership or life membership in the College may be granted at the discretion of the Council, or the College, to persons who have rendered distinguished service to the field of social work

### *Rights of members*

30. (1) Members who are Registered Social Workers, Registered Social Workers (Provisional), Social Worker Candidates, and Associate Social Workers are entitled to vote and participate in all meetings of the College and, if in good standing, are eligible for election to the Council.

(2) All members in good standing are eligible to be appointed to serve on committees and are entitled to receive correspondence directed to the membership, College, newsletters, questionnaires, sample surveys, deductions for workshops and other benefits designed by the Council.

### *Members in good standing*

31. A member shall be deemed in good standing, if:

- (a) They hold active registration with the College;
- (b) All fees, fines, and/or costs they owe to the College are paid;
- (c) Their registration is not subject to a suspension and/or interim measures; and
- (d) Their registration is not subject to any conditions or restrictions that restrict the practice of social work.

### *Private practice requirements*

32. (1) Registered Social Workers shall, on application to the Board of Examiners, be registered as entitled to engage in the private practice of social work, if they:

- (a) are members in good standing and not currently the subject of an outstanding disciplinary order;
- (b) have successfully completed a master's or doctoral degree in social work from an accredited School of Social Work as listed with the Canadian Association of Schools of Social Work or an equivalent graduate social work degree recognized as such by the Board;
- (c) have a minimum of five years or equivalent hours of professional social work experience including:
  - (i) two years or equivalent hours of professional social work experience, following completion of a masters or doctoral degree in social work and within the previous ten years, which is relevant to the area or areas of specialization in which the applicant proposes to conduct a private practice;
  - Or
  - (ii) four years or equivalent hours of professional social work experience within the past ten years which is relevant to the area or areas of specialization in which the applicant proposes to conduct a

private practice and which may have been obtained, in whole or in part, prior to completing a masters or doctoral degree in social work.

- (d) The experience referred to in subsection 1(c)(i) and (ii) must have been supervised by, or conducted in consultation with, another professional with appropriate expertise in the proposed specialization: In all cases, social work experience refers to a position in which the primary professional designation is social work or for which a social work qualification was required or preferred.

(2) Persons who wish to engage in the private practice of social work shall apply to the Board of Examiners, and shall provide the following information:

- (a) a completed application form;
- (b) a curriculum vitae;
- (c) information regarding the applicant's proposed area or areas of specialization;
- (d) confirmation of competency in the applicant's proposed area or areas of specialization from persons supervising or consulting with the applicant;
- (e) completion of a current criminal record check;
- (f) completion of a Child Abuse Register check, where relevant;
- (g) two letters of reference from Registered Social Workers in good standing with the College, or for applicants from outside Nova Scotia, two letters of reference from qualified social workers attesting to the requirements pertaining to the applicant's competency in their proposed area(s) of specialization;
- (h) proof of any requirements set out in subsection (1); and
- (i) a disciplinary record from the Nova Scotia College of Social Workers or any other social work College of which the applicant has been a member.

(3) The Board of Examiners may require an interview for clarification where other information is inadequate or inconclusive in assisting the Board to determine the suitability of the member to be approved for private practice.

(4) Any person seeking to engage in the private practice of social work shall provide evidence of appropriate insurance coverage acceptable to the Board for malpractice liability for the applicant's private practice.

(5) Registered social workers registered to engage in private practice may conduct the private practice of social work only in their approved area or areas of specialization.

### *Specialization*

- 33. Persons registered to engage in private practice may conduct the private practice of social work only in their approved fields of specialization.

### *Code of Ethics*

34. The Code of Ethics shall be the most recently revised Code of Ethics as approved by the College.

## Personal and Real Property

35. The College, in furtherance of its objects, shall have the power to:
- (a) acquire and hold assets and property, both real and personal, by way of purchase, lease, grant, hire, exchange or otherwise, and to dispose of such property by any means;
  - (b) provide for the management of its property and assets, and of its affairs and business including the employment of staff;
  - (c) borrow money for the purpose of carrying out the objects of the College and give security for money borrowed on any of its real or personal property by way of mortgage, pledge, charge or otherwise.

## Payment of Fees

### *Registrants - Registered Social Workers, Social Worker Candidates and Registered Social Workers (Provisional)*

36. (1) The annual fee for registrants is payable on or before December 31st in each calendar year unless a change is determined by resolution of Council.
- (2) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall refuse to register any registrant who has not paid the annual registration renewal fee on or before December 31. The registrant's name shall be removed from the Register of Social Workers, Social Worker Candidates and Registered Social Workers (Provisional), effective January 1.
- (a) Annual registration fees shall be as set out in the Schedule A attached hereto, and may be amended by the College from time to time.
  - (b) Council may, after receiving advice from the Treasurer, increase any fee by a percentage up to but not exceeding the change in the Statistics Canada Consumer Price Index (CPI) since the date of the last change in fee. If the Council determines that a fee increase representing a change greater than the percentage change in the Consumer Index is required to operate the College, then a proposal for a fee increase, supported by a budget, shall be prepared for presentation and approval voting at an Annual General Meeting.
- (3) A registrant who has been refused registration and whose name has been removed from the Register for non-payment of fees may, up to the end of the calendar year in which the fees were due, apply for reinstatement. The registrant

shall pay a reinstatement application fee as set in Schedule A, the fee for the full registration year, the late fee, plus interest at the rate of 10% per annum calculated monthly.

### *New registrants*

(4) The Executive Director/ Registrar shall prorate the annual registration fee each quarter year period (January 1 - March 31, April 1 - June 30, July 1- September 30, and October 1 - December 31) with respect to any person who becomes registered to practice as a Registered Social Worker, Social Worker Candidate, or Registered Social Worker (Provisional) during the calendar year, as set out in Schedule A. Fee amounts will be rounded to the nearest dollar.

(5) An applicant for registration as a Registered Social Worker, Social Worker Candidate, or Registered Social Worker (Provisional) shall pay an application fee and the required registration fee as set out in Schedule A before being registered to practice social work in Nova Scotia.

## Student Members and Associate Members (Retired)

### *Student members*

(6) Students in approved social work education programs who are not registered social workers in Nova Scotia may apply for student membership;

(7) Student membership is not registration to practice social work and does not confer the rights of registration;

(8) Student membership will be conferred upon approval of the application by the Executive Director/Executive Director/Registrar and payment of the fee as referred to in Schedule "A;"

(9) Student membership entitles a student to:

- (a) Pay a reduced registration fee as referred to in Schedule "A;"
- (c) Participate in non-regulatory committees, working groups, and task forces;
- (d) Attend College conferences and educational events at student rates;
- (e) Receive College newsletters, surveys, and questionnaires, and be entered on the email newsletter;
- (f) Receive Canadian Association of Social Workers Journal;
- (g) Student members are not eligible for election to the Council of the College;
- (h) Student members do have a vote at meetings of Council, Annual General Meetings, or at special meetings called by the President;
- (i) Student members shall agree to adhere to the College's Code of Ethics and Standards of Practice.

### *Associate members (retired)*

- (10) Social workers may apply for Associate membership (Retired) status if:
- (a) Their registration is in good standing;
  - (b) There are no outstanding complaints laid against them;
  - (c) They are not practicing social work and do not intend to practice social work in the future.
- (11) Associate membership (Retired) will be conferred upon approval of the application by the Executive Director/Registrar and payment of the fee as referred to in Schedule "A."
- (12) The Associate membership (Retired) year is the same as the registration year of the College;
- (13) Associate membership (Retired) is not registration to practice social work and does not confer the rights of registration;
- (14) If Associate members (Retired) engage in the practice of social work, the Associate member (Retired) is deemed to have resumed active practice and shall pay to the College any outstanding fees or penalties, including the annual registration fee or balance thereof, and a further fee, as referred to in Schedule "A", for each relevant year;
- (15) Notwithstanding section 8(d) above Associate members (Retired) may engage in the practice of social work during a public emergency;
- (16) Associate membership (Retired) entitles an Associate member (Associate Member Retired);
- (a) Participate in non-regulatory committees, task forces, or working groups;
  - (b) Attend College conferences and educational events at retired member rates;
  - (c) Receive College newsletter, surveys, and questionnaires, and be entered on the listserv;

### *Schedule of Fees*

37. A scale of suggested fees for services provided by social workers in private practice may be set out in Schedule "A" attached hereto and may be amended by the College from time to time.



## Recommended Rates

### *Fees for private practice Masters prepared and PhD social work*

(1) The Nova Scotia College of Social Work has set the recommended fee for private practice Masters level and PhD social workers registered with the College as a minimum rate of \$175.00 per session.

(2) This rate is provided as a guideline to inform clients of what they can expect to pay for Masters level or above social work services in a private practice setting. This rate is also set to assist third-party payers (i.e. insurers, government, and private business) so they can make informed decisions when adjusting their reimbursement rates for their services. This recommended fee is based on a comparison of other mental health professionals in Nova Scotia providing counselling and mental health services.

(3) This is a recommended fee guideline. There may be fee variations taking into consideration: geographical location, practice specialization, nature of the service provided and number of people involved in each session. Fees for specialized services may be higher than the recommended rate. Individual practitioners will always retain the autonomy to set and adjust their fees based on the variables noted above and/or other variables that they deem appropriate to consider.

<b>SERVICE</b>	<b>FEE</b>
<b>Individual/Couple/Family Therapy</b>	\$175.00 per session (50 minutes)
<b>Consultation</b>	\$175.00 per hour
<b>Assessment</b>	Depends on complexity and type

Table 1

## Schedule "A" Annual and Other Fees

### *Initial Application Fee*

1. The application fee for registration as an Active or Inactive Registered Social Worker, Social Worker Candidate or Registered Social Worker (Provisional) is \$100.00.

### *Annual Registration and Renewal Fee:*

2. Notice of requirement to renew license to practice social work
  - (a) The College makes available the Annual Registration Renewal to all members three calendar months prior to the end of the current registration year (December 31).
    - (i) This notification will be by email to the last known email address submitted by the licensee;
    - (ii) Registrants are responsible for renewing their Registration to practice social work regardless of whether or not they receive the notice from the College.
3. Members shall renew their registration by completing the annual renewal form and submitting both the form and the renewal fee on or before December 31.
4. The annual registration fee or renewal fee is:
  - (a) Active Members: \$445.00; prorated quarterly for new applicants and new graduates;
  - (b) Associate Members: 50% of the regular registration fee (\$222)

<b>ANNUAL REGISTRATION RENEWAL FEES for 2023</b>				
<i>Registration year begins January 1 and covers a twelve-month period</i>				
<b>Active</b>	<b>Private Practitioner</b>	<b>Associate</b>	<b>Retired Associate</b>	<b>Student member</b>
\$445	\$495 (see #6 below)	\$222	\$50	N/A

Table 2

- (c) Registrants may apply for Associate registration, if
  - (i) They are eligible for active status;
  - (ii) They are not in default of any obligations to the College;
  - (iii) They are not practicing social work in Nova Scotia on January 1 of the renewal year;
  - (iv) They are not practicing social work in Nova Scotia for reasons which may include but are not limited to: maternity leave; paternity or parental leave; long-term disability; long term leaves

of absence; return to school; inability to secure social work employment; residing out of province; retirement from a social work position.

- (d) Associate registrants may resume active practice after they have informed the Executive Director/ Registrar of their proposed change of status, have fulfilled the continuing education requirements, submitted the required forms, and have paid any outstanding fees owed to the College. Fees must be paid in full before inactive registrants may resume active status.
- (e) If an Associate registrant engages in the practice of social work or uses any of the titles or designations reserved to the profession of social work without their being followed by the word Associate, the Associate registrant is deemed to have resumed active practice and shall pay to the College any outstanding fees or penalties, including the annual registration fee or balance thereof, and a further fee, as referred to in Schedule “a”, for each relevant year.
- (f) New Members will pay an annual registration fee as follows, prorated from the date of approval to practice or of practice, whichever is first:

<b>INITIAL REGISTRATION FEES</b>	<b>Active</b>	<b>Associate</b>
<b>January 1 - March 31:</b>	\$445	\$222
<b>April 1 - June 30:</b>	\$332	\$167
<b>July 1 - September 30:</b>	\$222	\$111
<b>October 1 - December 31:</b>	\$111	\$57
<b>Student member (all year):</b> \$10		

Table 3

- (g) New graduates who are applying for registration within a year of their graduation from an accredited school of social work or equivalent will pay an annual registration fee as follows, prorated from the date of approval to practice, or of practice, whichever is first.

<b>INITIAL REGISTRATION FEE FOR RECENT GRADUATES</b>	<b>Active</b>	<b>Associate</b>
<b>January 1 - March 31:</b>	\$222	\$111
<b>April 1 - June 30:</b>	\$167	\$84

<b>INITIAL REGISTRATION FEE FOR RECENT GRADUATES</b>	<b>Active</b>	<b>Associate</b>
<b>July 1 - September 30:</b>	\$111	\$57
<b>October 1 - December 31:</b>	\$57	\$28

Table 4

### *Private Practice Fees*

5. The initial application fee for entitlement to engage in private practice is \$50.00.
6. The additional annual fee to engage in private practice is \$50.00.

### *Other Fees*

7. The fee for an examination of an applicant: \$50
8. The fee for hard copy submission of Application or Renewal: \$25
9. The fee for duplicate copies of receipts: \$10
10. The fee for reinstatement (failure to pay fees) will be \$25 if under a week past the renewal date, \$50.00 if over a week late, \$75 if over two weeks late, \$100 if over three weeks late.
11. The fee for reinstatement (from retirement or resignation): \$25
12. The fee for telepractice for registrants of another Canadian jurisdiction: \$50
13. The fee for an appeal of Decision by the Board of Examiners: \$100